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Holding Company 

101 North Main Street • Jonesboro, Georgia 30236 

Dear Shareholders; 

Enclosed is our annual report for CCF Holding Company and Heritage Bank. We would like to take a 

moment and summarize the report as well as give you an update on the bank. As seen on Page 3 of the 

report "Consolidated Balance Sheets", total assets increased by almost $12 million, with $10 million of 

this increase attributed to growth in our loan portfolio. This is particularly good news as we are seeing 

signs in our local communities of loan demand being created by new economic growth. We will be the 

first to admit the growth is timid, but nonetheless positive. IVlany of the indicators point to a significant 

strengthening in single family residential housing. Also noteworthy, "Foreclosed Assets" declined by 

almost $4.5 million in 2013. This is further supported by a strengthening in the loan quality measures in 

the loan portfolio as more of our customers are seeing stronger cash flows and less downward pressures 

on their businesses. The bank's deposit growth continues to be very strong and our "Non-interest 

bearing demand deposits" increased by 10% year over year. The bank continues to see steady quality 

growth on its balance sheet. 

Page 4 of the report titled "Consolidated Statement of Earnings (Losses)" shows an overall net loss of 

$214,092 for the year. The primary contributor to the loss was "Loss on sale and write-downs of 

foreclosed assets" that accounted for $1.25 million for the year. Management took an aggressive 

strategy in 2013 to accelerate the cleansing of the balance sheet in both foreclosed assets and adversely 

classified loans. In total, we were able to reduce these assets by more than $17.3 million in 2013. It is 

our intention to continue with this strategy in 2014. To look at the core earnings of the bank, we see 

"Net interest income before provision for loan losses" increased almost $600,000 year over year. "Gain 

on sale of loans and Gain on sale of investments" were down year over year $1.1 million as these items 

typically are not considered core earnings. "Total non-interest expense" increased $1.2 million in 2013 

and was due primarily to increases in salary and benefit expense along with "Loss on sale and write

down of foreclosed assets" as mentioned above. In summary, we continue to see all metrics within the 

bank moving in positive directions. 

Heritage Bank completed its second consecutive year of positive net earnings and continues to be 

recognized in all of our markets as a source of strength and a pillar of the community. This reputation is 

being leveraged as much as possible as we are the sole remaining bank in Clayton and Henry Counties 

that did not receive government assistance during the latest economic recession. Our outstanding 

reputation in Fayette County has also been bolstered by being the only bank in Fayetteville that can 

make that claim as well. Obviously, there is still work to be done in continuing to clean the problem 

loans and foreclosed property from the balance sheet, but our progress gains momentum every day. 



In November of 2013, the company kicked off a private placement of preferred securities in order to 

raise new capital which could be used to resolve the lingering issues surrounding the $8.5 million of 

Trust Preferred Securities issued by our subsidiaries CCF Capital Trust I &TI and listed on our financial 

statements as "junior subordinated debentures" on Page 3 and in Note H. As we neared the end of the 

interest deferral period, it became our goal to retire these securities through the issuance of new equity 

securities. We were very fortunate that our customers and shareholders committed to nearly $8 million 

of new capital during a four month period. The company's representatives negotiated with the holders 

of the Trust Preferred Securities, primarily the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation which acquired 

the securities through the failure of Silverton Bank in 2010. The result of this negotiation has been a 

written commitment from the FDIC and the other two holders of the securities to settle in full. The 

terms of the settlement with the FDIC includes cash of $1,875 million and a note for approximately $1.3 

million. The terms to the other holders is an exchange of newly issued preferred stock for their 

securities and accrued interest. While this settlement is costly to our shareholders through dilution of 

ownership, it does remove the uncertainty associated with a FDIC mandated default on the securities 

and the subsequent need to seek protection through bankruptcy and a reorganization of the company. 

In addition, it generates a substantial amount of new capital to be put into Heritage Bank increasing our 

capital ratios significantly. 

When we entered 2014 we knew it would be a key year to put some distance between us and the 

effects of the great recession. Business opportunities are increasing, capital and earnings are growing, 

problem assets are declining and now the overhang associated with the Trust Preferred Securities is 

being resolved. It has been a great first quarter and we hope the rest of the year continues in the same 

direction. As always, we are thankful for our loyal group of employees, grateful for the customers that 

trust us with their financial assets, and we never take your investment for granted. 

Sincerely, 

f^C^i 

Leonard A. Moreland David B. Turner 

President & CEO President & CEO 

Heritage Bank CCF Holding Company 
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INDEPENDENT A U D I T O R S ' R E P O R T 

Board of Directors 
CCF Holding Company and Subsidiary 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CCF Holding Company and Subsidiary, 
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2013, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the 
year ended December 31, 2013 and the related notes to the financial statements. Our responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The financial statements of 
CCF Holding Company and Subsidiary for the year ended December 31, 2012 were audited by 
Thigpen, Jones, Seaton & Co., P.C, independent accountants, whose partners merged with TJS 
Deemer Dana LLP on January 1, 2014. Thigpen, Jones, Seaton & Co., P.C.'s report dated March 13, 
2013, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

1004 Hillcrest Parkway 
Dublin, GA 31021 

PHONE: 478.272.2030 
FAX: 478,272,3318 

2905 Premiere Parkway 
Suite 100 

Duluth, GA 30097 
PHONE: 770.498,1400 

FAX: 770,498.1419 

118 Park of Conamerce Drive 
Suite 200 

Savannain, GA 31405 
PHONE; 912,238.1001 

FAX; 912,238.1701 

http://tjsdd.com


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of CCF Holding Company and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2013, 
and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2013 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

^MMSJLB^JM^ ^ / r 

March 27, 2014 
Dublin, Georgia 



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

As of December 31, 

Assets 

Cash and due from banks 

Federal funds sold 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

Certificates of deposits in other institutions 

Securities available for sale, at fair value 

Securities held to maturity, at cost 

Federal Home Loan Bank stock, restricted, at cost 

Loans, net of unearned income 

Less - allowance for loan losses 

Loans, net 

Bank premises and equipment, net 

Foreclosed assets 

Cash surrender value of life insurance 

Accrued interest receivable 

Other assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 

Deposits: 

Non-interest bearing demand deposits 

Interest bearing demand deposits 

Savings 

Time deposits less than $100,000 

Time deposits greater than $100,000 

Total deposits 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

Junior subordinated debentures 

Accrued interest payable 

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Shareholders' Equity: 

Preferred stock, no par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; no 

shares issued or outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 

Common stock, $.10 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized as 

of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively; 3,604,316 shares issued and 

outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 

Paid-in capital surplus 

Accumulated deficit 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

Total shareholders' equity 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 

2013 

10,731,683 

9,221,000 

44,996,612 

12,088,929 

700,300 

256,624,474 

(4,149,308) 

252,475,166 

7,445,509 

23,070,880 

7,669,453 

429,558 

1,380,236 

7,715,014 

2012 

10,731,683 $ 28,668,532 

28,668,532 

3,234,000 

25,826,634 

13,558,119 

550,700 

246,603,017 

(4,316,493) 

242,286,524 

7,681,048 

27,539,700 

7,350,629 

552,661 

1,382,366 

$ 370,209,326 $ 358,630,913 

$ 49,936,547 $ 

150,047,004 

6,714,762 

56,225,062 

68,074,802 

330,998,177 

13,184,495 

6,000,000 

8,765,000 

103,027 

3,443,613 

362,494,312 

45,594,977 

146,486,900 

5,727,013 

60,102,198 

67,876,980 

325,788,068 

11,587,256 

-
8,765,000 

160,739 

3,097,068 

349,398,131 

360,432 

9,109,773 

(465,758) 

(1,289,433) 

360,432 

9,075,553 

(251,666) 

48,463 

9,232,782 

$ 370,209,326 $ 358,630,913 

See Accompanving Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

3 



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS (LOSSES) 

Years Ended December 31, 

Interest and Dividend Income: 

Interest and fees on loans 

Interest on securities: 

Taxable income 

Non-taxable income 

Income on federal funds sold 

Income on interest-bearing deposits in other banks 

Total interest and dividend income 

Interest Expense: 

Deposits 

Other interest expense 

Total interest expense 

Net interest income before provision for loan losses 

Less - provision for loan losses 

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 

Noninterest Income: 

Service charges 

Gain on sales of loans 

Gain on sales and calls of investments 

Gain on disposal of premises and equipment 

Increase in value of life insurance asset 

Other income 

Total noninterest income 

Noninterest Expense: 

Salaries and employee benefits 

Occupancy expenses 

Loss on sales and writedown of foreclosed assets 

Expenses on foreclosed assets held 

FDIC insurance premiums 

Other expenses 

Total noninterest expense 

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes 

Provision for (benefit of) income taxes 

Net Income (Loss) 

Earnings (loss) per common share: 

Basic 

Diluted 

2013 

$ 13,037,986 $ 

747,177 

33,512 

42,336 

655 

13,861,666 

1,536,590 

377,168 

1,913,758 

11,947,908 

900,000 

11,047,908 

2012 

13,149,507 

933,201 

37,797 

42,801 

1,804 

14,165,110 

2,420,897 

377,325 

2,798,222 

11,366,888 

375,000 

10,991,888 

1,162,075 

(214,092) 

(214,092) $_ 

(0.06) $_ 

1,130,966 

44,982 

97,693 

1,538 

318,824 

683,726 

2,308,838 

5,783,027 

1,793,391 

1,250,377 

1,051,299 

812,788 

2,879,956 

13,570,838 

512,648 

766,677 

-
320,507 

584,646 

3,315,444 

5,135,735 

1,496,342 

738,043 

958,640 

1,127,838 

2,896,825 

12,353,423 

1,953,909 

1,953,909 

0.54 

(0.06) 0.54 

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
4 



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

Net Income (Loss) 

Other comprehensive loss: 

Unrealized holding gains (losses) on investment securities held for sale 

Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in income 

Net unrealized losses 

Tax effect 

Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income (loss) 

Years Ended December 31, 

$ 

$ 

2013 

(214,092) $ 

(1,240,203) 

(97,693) 

(1,337,896) 

(1,337,896) 

(1,551,988) $ 

2012 

1,953,909 

290,106 

(766,677) 

(476,571) 

(476,571) 

1,477,338 

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS 

Years Ended December 31, 

2013 2012 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 

Net income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 

Provision for loan losses 

Depreciation, amortization and accretion 

Gain on sales and calls of investment securities 

Gain on sale of loans 

Loss on sales and writedown of foreclosed assets 

Gain on disposal of premises and equipment 

Compensation expense from issuance of stock options 

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance 

Changes in accrued income and other assets 

Changes in accrued expenses and other liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 

Net change in loans to customers 

Net change in certificates of deposit in other banks 

Purchase of available for sale securities 

Proceeds from sales of available for sale securities 

Proceeds from maturities/calls of available for sale securities 

Purchase of held to maturity securities 

Proceeds from maturities/calls of held to maturity securities 

Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 

Proceeds from redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 

Proceeds from sales of loans 

Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets 

Capitalized improvements on foreclosed assets 

Property and equipment expenditures 

Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities: 

Net change in deposits 

Net change in customer escrow accounts 

Net change in securities sold under agreements to repurchase 

Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advance 

Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advance 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

(214,092) $ 1,953,909 

900,000 

595,177 

(97,693) 

(44,982) 

1,250,377 

(1,538) 

34,220 

(318,824) 

125,233 

269,885 

2,497,763 

(9,157,535) 

(5,987,000) 

(38,678,656) 

14,051,226 

4,169,078 

-
1,469,553 

(495,000) 

345,400 

-
1,534,170 

(201,852) 

(362,666) 

52,374 

(33,260,908) 

5,210,109 

18,948 

1,597,239 

15,000,000 

(9,000,000) 

12,826,296 

(17,936,849) 

28,668,532 

$ 10,731,683 $ 

375,000 

656,206 

(766,677) 

(512,648) 

738,043 

-
-

(320,507) 

(268,512) 

(134,584) 

1,720,230 

(6,660,130) 

5,860,000 

(37,505,637) 

31,284,873 

21,842,320 

(13,869,704) 

311,134 

-
642,500 

(1,706,421) 

1,216,124 

(452,476) 

(2,018,460) 

» 

(1,055,877) 

(3,210,449) 

201,581 

(4,339,415) 

-

-

(7,348,283) 

(6,683,930) 

35,352,462 

28,668,532 

See Accompanving Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
7 



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS 

Cash paid for interest and taxes 

2013 2012 

Interest on deposits and borrowings $ 1,971,470 $ 2,908,105 

Income taxes, net $ ^ $ -_ 

Noncash items 

2013 2012 

Changes in unrealized gain/loss on investments $ (1,337,896) $ (476,571) 

Transfer of loans to foreclosed assets $ 1,205,849 $ 5,064,250 

Sale of foreclosed assets financed by loans $ 3,091,974 $ 1,458,347 

Reduction in SERP liability due to plan amendment $ ^ $ 1,736,450 

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

CCF Holding Company (Company) and its subsidiary. Heritage Bank (Bank), conform with accoimting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and general practices within the banking industry. 
The policies that materially affect financial position and the results of operations are summarized as follows: 

1. Reporting Entity - The Company is incorporated in the State of Georgia as a state charted bank holding 
company whose business is conducted by its wholly owned bank subsidiary. The Company is primarily 
regulated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (Federal Reserve) and Georgia 
Department of Banking and Finance (DBF), while the Bank is primarily regulated by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and the DBF. Both the Bank and the Company are subject to periodic 
examinations by these regulatory authorities. 

The Bank provides a full range of banking services to individual and corporate customers through its 
main office in Jonesboro, Georgia and five other branch offices in Georgia, located in Clayton, Fayette and 
Henry Counties. The Bank primarily competes with other financial institutions in its market area, which it 
considers to be south metropolitan Atlanta. 

2. Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the 
accounts of the Company and its wholly owned bank subsidiary. All material intercompany accounts 
and transactions have been eliminated as a result of consolidation. 

3. Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

The determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is based on estimates that are 
particularly susceptible to significant changes in the economic environment and market conditions. In 
connection with the determination of the estimated losses on loans, management obtains independent 
appraisals for significant collateral. 

The Subsidiary's loans are generally secured by specific items of collateral including real property, 
consumer assets and business assets. Although the Subsidiary has a diversified loan portfolio, a 
substantial portion of its debtors' ability to honor their contracts is dependent on local economic 
conditions. 

While management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, further reductions in the 
carrying amounts of loans may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, 
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the estimated 
losses on loans. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additional losses based on their 
judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination. Because of these factors, 
it is reasonably possible that the estimated losses on loans may change materially in the near term. 
However, the amount of the change that is reasonably possible cannot be estimated. 

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include 
cash on hand, amounts due from banks, highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original 
maturity of three months or less and federal funds sold. Generally, federal funds are purchased and sold 
for one-day periods. 

5. Securities - The Company classifies its securities in one of three categories: trading, available-for-sale, or 
held-to-maturity. Trading securities are bought and held principally for sale in the near term. Held-to-



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

maturity securities are those securities for which the Company has the ability and intent to hold until 
maturity. All other securities not included in trading or held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-
sale. The Company's current investment policy prohibits trading activity. 

Held-to-maturity securities are recorded at cost, adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or 
discounts. Transfers of securities between categories are recorded at fair value at the date of transfer. 
Unrealized holding gains or losses associated with transfers of securities from held-to-maturity to 
available-for-sale are recorded as a separate component of shareholders' equity. 

Available-for-sale securities consist of investment securities not classified as trading securities or held-to-
maturity securities and are recorded at fair value. Unrealized holding gains and losses on securities 
available-for-sale are excluded from earnings and are reported as a separate component of shareholders' 
equity until realized. A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity 
investment below cost that is deemed an other than temporary decline is charged to earnings and 
establishes a new cost basis for the security. 

Mortgage-backed securities represent participating interests in pools of long-term first mortgage loans 
originated and serviced by issuers of the securities. Mortgage-backed securities are carried at unpaid 
principal balances, adjusted for unamortized premiums and unearned discounts. 

Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted over the life of the related security as an adjustment to 
the yield. Realized gains and losses for securities classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity are 
included in earnings and are derived using the specific identification method for determining the cost of 
securities sold. 

The market value of securities is generally based on quoted market prices. If a quoted market price is not 
available, market value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities. 

6. Federal Home Loan Bank Stock - Investment in stock of a Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) is required 
for every federally insured institution that utilizes its services. FHLB stock is considered restricted, as 
defined in FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 320, Investments - Debt and Equity Securities; 
accordingly, the provisions of ASC Topic 320 are not applicable to this investment. The FHLB stock is 
reported in the consolidated financial statements at cost. Dividend income is recognized when earned. 

7. Loans and Interest Income - Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable 
future or until maturity are reported at the principal amount outstanding, net of the allowance for loan 
losses and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Interest on all loans is calculated using the 
simple interest method on the daily balance of the principal amount outstanding. 

Loan origination fees collected, net of certain direct loan origination costs, are deferred and recognized 
into income using the interest method as an adjustment of the yield over the lives of the underlying loans. 

The accrual of interest income is generally discontinued on loans which become contractually past due by 
90 days. Interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period interest income 
when such loans are placed on nonaccrual status. Interest accruals are recorded on such loans only when 
they are brought fully current with respect to interest and principal and when, in the judgment of 
management, the loans are estimated to be fully collectible as to both principal and interest. 

8. Allowance for Loan Losses - The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for loan 
losses charged to expense. Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management 
believes that the collection of principal is unlikely. The Bank has established a loan grading system whose 
classifications are consistent with those used by the Bank's regulators. Management utilizes this system to 
evaluate the adequacy of its allowance for loan losses. Allocations of loss are calculated based on 
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expected loss ratios for each loan classification. These ratios have been determined considering the Bank's 
historical loss rates and historical losses experienced within the industry. For individually significant 
loans deemed to be impaired, a specific allowance is established based on the expected collectability 
considering the borrower's cash flow and the adequacy of the collateral coverage. The results of the 
Bank's evaluation are compared to the recorded allowance for loan losses and significant deviations are 
adjusted by increasing or decreasing the provision for loan losses. 

Management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate. While management uses available 
information to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on 
changes in economic conditions. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their 
examination process, periodically review the allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the 
Bank to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at 
the time of their examination. 

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that all 
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected. Impaired 
loans are measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's 
effective interest rate, or at the loan's observable market price, or at the fair value of the collateral of the 
loan if the loan is collateral dependent. Interest income from impaired loans is recognized using a cash 
basis method of accotmting. 

Large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment. 
Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual consumer loans for impairment 
disclosures. 

9. Premises and Equipment - Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Major additions and improvements are charged to the asset accounts while maintenance and repairs that 
do not improve or extend the useful lives of the assets are expensed. When assets are retired or otherwise 
disposed, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any gain or 
loss is reflected in earnings for the period. 

10. Other Real Estate Owned - Other real estate owned, acquired principally through foreclosure, is stated at 
the lower of cost or net realizable value. Loan losses incurred in the acquisition of these properties are 
charged against the allowance for possible loan losses at the time of foreclosure. Subsequent write-downs 
of other real estate owned are charged against the current period's expense. 

11. Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase - Securities sold under agreement to repurchase are 
secured borrowings from customers and are treated as financing activities and are carried at the amounts 
at which the securities will be subsequently reacquired as specified in the respective agreements. 

12. Income Taxes - Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for the future tax consequences 
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and 
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax 
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the assets and liabilities are expected to be 
recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized 
in income tax expense in the period that includes the enactment date. 

In the event the future tax consequences of differences between the financial reporting bases and the tax 
bases of the Company's assets and liabilities result in deferred tax assets, an evaluation of the probability 
of being able to realize the future benefits indicated by such asset is required. A valuation allowance is 
provided for the portion of the deferred tax asset when it is more likely than not that some portion or all 
of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. In assessing the realizability of the deferred tax assets. 
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management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, 
and tax planning strategies. 

The Company adopted FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740-10-25, Recognition, as of 
January 1, 2010. A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is "more likely than not" that the tax 
position would be sustained in a tax examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The 
amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being 
realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the "more likely than not" test, no tax benefit is 
recorded. The adoption had no effect on the Company's financial statement for the year ending December 
31, 2013. 

The Company is subject to U.S. federal and Georgia state income tax audit for returns for the tax periods 
ending December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011. 

13. Stock Compensation Plans - Accounting for Stock Based Compensation was adopted by the Company on 
the required effective date, January 1, 2007, using the modified prospective transition method in which 
the Company receives employee services in exchange for equity instruments of the Company. Accounting 
for stock based compensation requires the Company to recognize as compensation expense the "grant 
date fair value" of stock options granted to employees in the statement of earnings using the fair-value-
based method. Prior to the adoption of this method, the Company utilized the recognition and 
measurement principles that were previously permissible under earlier methods, no compensation 
expense was recognized in the statement of earnings, since the exercise price on the grant date was equal 
to the market value of the underlying stock. 

The Company recognized stock based compensation expense of $34,219 and $-0- during the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company recognizes compensation expense for stock 
option grants with graded vesting schedules on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of 
the award as required by code references 505 and 718. 

14. Advertising Costs - It is the policy of the Company to expense advertising costs as they are incurred. The 
Company does not engage in any direct-response advertising and accordingly has no advertising costs 
reported as assets on its balance sheet. Amounts charged to advertising expense for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $64,134 and $88,625, respectively. 

15. Cash Surrender Value of Bank Owned Life Insurance (BOLI) - The Bank has purchased life insurance on 
the lives of certain Bank officers. The beneficial aspects of these life insurance policies are tax-free 
earnings and a tax free tax death benefit, which are realized by the Bank as the owner of the policies. The 
cash surrender value of these policies is included as an asset on the balance sheets, and any increases in 
cash surrender value are recorded as noninterest income in the statements of income. 

16. Comprehensive Income - GAAP generally requires that recognized revenues, expenses, gains and losses 
be included in net earnings. Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains 
and losses on available-for-sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of 
the consolidated balance sheets, such items along with net earnings, are components of comprehensive 
income. The adoption of FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 220, Comprehensive Income, had 
no effect on the Company's net income or shareholders' equity. The Company presents comprehensive 
income in a separate consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

17. Earnings per Common Share - Basic earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding during the period while the effects of potential shares outstanding during 
the period are included in diluted earnings per share. 
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The reconciliation of the amounts used in the computation of both "basic earnings per share" and 
"diluted earnings per share" for each period is presented as follows: 

Net income (loss) 
Less: Preferred stock dividends 

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders 

Years Ended December 31, 

2013 

$ (214,092) $ 

(214,092) $_ 

2012 

1,953,909 

1,953,909 

Average number of common shares outstanding 
Effect of dilutive options, warrants, etc. 

Average number of common shares outstanding 
used to calculate diluted earnings per common share 

3,604,316 

3,604,316 

3,604,316 

3,604,316 

Earnings (loss) per share - basic 

Earnings (loss) per share - diluted 

(0.06) 

(0.06) $_ 

0.54 

0.54 

18. Changes in Accounting Principles and Effects of New Accounting Pronouncements -

ASU 2013-02, "Reporting of Amount Reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income." The 
objective of ASU 2013-02 was to address the requirement that companies present either in a single note or 
parenthetically on the face of the financial statements, the effect of significant amounts reclassified from 
each component of accumulated other comprehensive income based on its source and the income 
statement line items affected by the reclassification. This guidance was effective for interim and annual 
periods begirming after December 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material effect 
on the Company's financial position or results of operations. 

ASU 2013-09, "Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Deferral of the Effective Date of Certain Disclosures for 
Nonpublic Employee Benefit Plans in Update No. 2011-04." The objective of ASU 2013-09 was to defer 
indefinitely the effective date of certain required disclosures in ASU 2011-04 (Topic 820) of quantitative 
information about the significant unobservable inputs based on Level 3 fair value measurements for 
investments held by nonpublic entity equity securities, including equity securities in its plan sponsor's 
own nonpublic entity equity securities, including equity securities of its plan sponsor's nonpublic 
affiliated entities. The amendments in this Update did not defer the effective date for those certain 
qualitative disclosures for other nonpublic entity equity securities held in the nonpublic employee benefit 
plan or any qualitative disclosures. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material effect on the 
Company's financial position or results of operations. 

ASU 2013-11, "Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar 
Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward exists." The objective of ASU 2013-11 was to provide guidance on the 
financial statement presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforward, a 
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2013. As the Company has these elements this accounting update 
could have an effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations, and financial statement 
disclosures. However, as the Company has elected to carry its asset a full valuation allowance against its 
deferred tax assets the adoption of this update is not expected to have a material impact on the 
Company's financial position, results of operations, or disclosures. 
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ASU 2014-04, "Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon 
Foreclosure." The objective of ASU 2014-04 clarifies when an in substance repossession or foreclosure has 
occurred and when a creditor should derecognize the associated loan receivable and recognize the real 
estate property. The amendments in the update are effective for annual periods beginning after December 
15, 2014. The Company does not expect the impact of this guidance to be material the Company's 
financial position, results of operations or disclosures. 

19. Reclassifications - Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified to 
conform to the presentation of current-year financial statements. 

20. Annual Disclosure Statement - Under 12 CFR 350, all FDlC-insured state-chartered banks that are not 
members of the Federal Reserve System are required to make available upon request an annual disclosure 
statement, which may include these audited financial statements and related notes. For the purposes of 
the annual disclosure statement, this document has not been reviewed, or confirmed for accuracy or 
relevance, by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

B. INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

Debt and equity securities have been classified in the balance sheet according to management's intent. The 
following table reflects the amortized cost and estimated market values of investments in debt securities. In 
addition, gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses are disclosed, in accordance FASB Accounting 
Standards Codification Topic 320, Investments - Debt and Equity Securities. 

The amortized cost and market values of securities with gross unrealized gains and losses are summarized as 
follows: 

AVAILABLE FOR SALE 

December 31, 2013 

Non-mortgage backed debt securities of : 

U.S. Agencies 

U.S. Government obligations 

State and Political subdivisions 

Other debt securities 

Total non-mortgage backed debt securities 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated 

Cost Gains Losses Market "Value 

$ 7,918,008 

14,349,845 

810,177 

1,000,000 

24,078,030 

22,208,015 

$ 46,286,045 

$ 

$ 

-

4,061 
_ 

4,061 

28,913 

32,974 

$ 

— 

t 

(65,110) 

(146,545) 

(18,779) 

(11,875) 

(242,309) 

(1,080,098) 

(1,322,407) 

$ 

— 

$ 

7,852,898 

14,203,300 

795,459 

988,125 

23,839,782 

21,156,830 

44,996,612 
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AVAILABLE FOR SALE (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2012 

Non-mortgage backed debt securities of : 

U.S. Agencies 

U.S. Government obligations 

State and Political subdivisions 

Other debt securities 

Total non-mortgage backed debt securities 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total 

Amortized 

Cost 

$ 1,999,973 

-

811,132 

2,000,000 

4,811,105 

20,967,066 

$ 25,778,171 

Unrealized 

$ 

L 

Gains 

4,100 

-

31,791 
-

35,891 

171,996 

207,887 

Unrealized 

$ 

— 

^ 

Losses 

-

-

-

(95,625) 

(95,625) 

(63,799) 

(159,424) 

_\ 

$ 

— 

L 

Estimated 

larket Value 

2,004,073 

-

842,923 

1,904,375 

4,751,371 

21,075,263 

25,826,634 

HELD TO MATURITY 

December 31,2013 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated 

Cost Gains Losses Market Value 

12,088,929 $ 

$ 12,088,929 $ 

$ (560,768) $ 11,528,161 

$ (560,768) $ 11,528,161 

December 31,2012 

Mortgage backed securities $ 13,558,119 $ 62,275 $ $ 13,620,394 

The book and market values of securities pledged to secure public funds and securities sold under agreements to 
repurchase were $39,055,425 and $37,384,660 at December 31, 2013, respectively and $24,536,150 and $24,671,779 
at December 31, 2012, respectively. 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company did not hold investment securities of any single issuer, other than 
obligations of the U. S. Treasury and other U. S. Government agencies, whose aggregate book value exceeded 
ten percent of shareholders' equity. 
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The amortized cost and estimated market value of debt securities at December 31, 2013 and 2012, by contractual 
maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities, because borrowers may 
have the right to call or repay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

December 31, 2013 

Non-mortgage backed securities: 

Due in one year or less 

Due after one year through five years 

Due after five years through ten years 

Due after ten years 

Total non-mortgage backed securities 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total 

December 31, 2012 

Non-mortgage backed securities: 

Due in one year or less 

Due after one year tiu'ough five years 

Due after five years through ten years 

Due after ten years 

Total non-mortgage backed securities 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total 

Available for Sale Held to Maturity 

Amortized Cost 

$ 310,177 

21,267,853 

2,000,000 

500,000 

24,078,030 

22,208,015 

$ 46,286,045 

Amortized Cost 

$ 2,211,432 

599,673 

2,000,000 

4,811,105 

20,967,066 

$ 25,778,171 

Estimated 

Market Value 

$ 

— 

1 

314,238 

21,096,698 

1,947,625 

481,221 

23,839,782 

21,156,830 

44,996,612 

Estimated 

Market Value 

$ 

1 

2,223,468 

623,528 

1,904,375 

4,751,371 

21,075,263 

25,826,634 

— 

$ 

1 

— 

$ 

L 

Amortized Cost 

„ 

-
-
-

-
12,088,929 

12,088,929 

Amortized Cost 

-

-
-

-
13,558,119 

13,558,119 

Estimated 

Market Value 

$ 
-
-
-

-
11,528,161 

$ 11,528,161 

Estimated 

Market Value 

$ 
-
-

-
13,620,394 

$ 13,620,394 

The market value is established by an independent pricing service as of the approximate dates indicated. The 
differences between the book value and market value reflect current interest rates and represent the potential 
loss (or gain) had the portfolio been liquidated on that date. Security losses (or gains) are realized only in the 
event of dispositions prior to maturity. 
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Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses aggregated by investment category and length 
of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position follows: 

AVAILABLE FOR SALE 

December 31,2013 

Non-mortgage backed debt securities of : 

U.S. Agencies 

U.S. Government obligations 

State and Political subdivisions 

Other debt securities 

Total non-mortgage backed debt securities 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total 

December 31, 2012 

Non-mortgage backed debt securities of : 

U.S. Agencies 

U.S. Government obligations 

State and Political subdivisions 

Other debt securities 

Total non-mortgage backed debt securities 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total 

Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or More 

Unrealized 

Losses 

$ 65,110 

146,545 

18,779 
_ 

230,434 

279,817 

$ 510,251 

Estimated 

Market Value 

$ 7,852,898 

14,203,300 

481,221 
-

22,537,419 

5,634,630 

$ 28,172,049 

Less Than Twelve Months 

Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 

Market Value 

Unrealized 

Losses 

$ 

-

-

11,875 

11,875 

800,281 

$ 812,156 

Estimated 

Market Value 

$ 
-

-
988,125 

988,125 

12,814,038 

$ 13,802,163 

Twelve Months or More 

Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 

Market Value 

58,839 12,695,888 

95,625 1,904,375 

95,625 

4,960 

1,904,375 

1,123,469 

$ 58,839 12,695,888 $ 100,585 $ 3,027,844 
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HELD TO MATURITY 

December 31, 2013 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total 

Less Than Twelve Months 

Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 

Market Value 

Twelve Months or More 

Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 

Market Value 

$ 560,768 $ 11,528,160 

$ 560,768 $ 11,528,160 $ 

Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or More 

Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 

Market Value 

Unrealized 

Losses 

Estimated 

Market Value 

December 31,2012 

Mortgage backed securities $ - $ ^ ^ : $ 

Total $ - $ - $ - $ 

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more 
frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length 
of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term 
prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Corporation to retain its investment in the issuer for a 
period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. 

At December 31, 2013, twenty-five (25) debt securities had an unrealized loss with a depreciation of 3.40% from 
the Company's amortized cost basis. At December 31, 2012 three (3) debt securities had an unrealized loss with a 
depreciation of 1.15% from the Company's amortized cost basis. In analyzing an issuer's financial condition, 
management considers whether the securities are issued by the federal government or its agencies, whether 
downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and industry analysts' reports. As management has the 
ability to hold debt securities until maturity, or for the foreseeable future if classified as available for sale, no 
declines are deemed to be other than temporary. 

Realized gains and losses are derived using the specific identification method for determining the cost of the 
securities sold. The following summarizes securities sales activities for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012: 

Years Ended 

December 31, 

2013 2012 

Proceeds from sales 

Gross gains on sales of securities 

Gross losses on sales of securities 

Net gains on sales of securities 

14,051,226 $ 

97,693 $ 

97,693 $ 

31,284,873 

766,677 

766,677 

18 



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

C. LOANS 

The Company engages in a full complement of lending activities, including real estate-related loans, commercial 
and financial loans and consumer installment loans. The majority of its lending activities are concentrated in real 
estate loans. While risk of loss in the Company's portfolio is primarily tied to the credit quality of the various 
borrowers, risk of loss may increase due to factors beyond the Company's control, such as local, regional and/or 
national economic downturns. General conditions in the real estate market may also impact the relative risk in 
the real estate portfolio. 

Loans are stated at unpaid balances, net of uneamed income and deferred loan fees. Balances within the major 
loans receivable categories are presented in the following table: 

2013 2012 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Total Loans 

Less; 

Allowance for loan losses 

Loans, net 

209,797,327 

8,368,927 

7,845,715 

6,332,805 

2,177,043 

22,102,657 

200,455,969 

8,404,708 

10,173,467 

5,024,069 

2,611,326 

19,933,478 

256,624,474 

(4,149,308) 

246,603,017 

(4,316,493) 

252,475,166 242,286,524 

Overdrafts included in loans were $30,340 and $48,188 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Credit Quality Indicators 

The Company uses a nine category risk grading system to assign a risk grade to each loan in the portfolio. The 
following is a description of the general characteristics of the grades: 

Pass - Represents loans with satisfactory or better borrowing relationships with the Bank. Typically supported 
by borrowers with established history and adequate cash flow to support the debt or the related collateral is 
valued so that no significant risk of loss has been identified by the Bank. 

Special Mention - Represents loans with potential weaknesses which may, if not identified and corrected, weaken 
the asset or inadequately protect the Bank's position at some future date. 

Substandard - Loans that are inadequately protected by the net worth and cash flow capacity of the borrower or 
of the collateral pledged against the loan. Credit risk is related to the possibility of some loss of principal or 
interest if deficiencies are not corrected. 

Doubtful - Loans which are inadequately protected by the net worth of the borrower or of the collateral pledged 
and repayment in full is improbable on the basis of existing facts, values and conditions. A full or partial reserve 
is recommended. 
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The following table presents the loan portfolio by risk grade as of December 31, 2013 and 2012: 

As of December 31, 2013 

Pass 

Special 

Mention Substandard Doubtful 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Total 

Overdraft, in-process and 
suspense accounts 

Total Loans 

$ 177,865,678 

7,817,265 

5,375,422 

6,332,805 

2,096,939 

20,800,806 

$ 220,288,915 

$ 

$ 

7,660,623 

525,366 

726,912 

-
13,109 

188,337 

9,114,347 

$ 

$ 

22,878,332 

-

1,743,381 

-

36,655 

1,113,514 

25,771,882 

Total 

$ 208,404,633 

8,342,631 

7,845,715 

6,332,805 

2,146,703 

22,102,657 

255,175,144 

1,449,330 

$ 256,624,474 

As of December 31, 2012 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Total 

Overdraft, in-process and 

suspense accounts 

Total Loans 

Pass 

155,120,109 

7,072,261 

5,109,434 

2,910,261 

2,421,109 

18,638,415 

Special 

Mention Substandard Doubtful 

14,184,494 

1,045,384 

726,912 

32,649 

524,158 

31,518,938 

298,521 

5,064,033 

1,386,896 

109,380 

770,905 

$ 191,271,589 $ 16,513,597 $ 39,148,673 

Total 

$ 200,823,541 

8,416,166 

10,173,467 

5,024,069 

2,563,138 

19,933,478 

246,933,859 

(330,842) 

$ 246,603,017 

Nonaccrual and Past Due Loans 

A loan is placed on nonaccrual status when, in management's judgment, the collection of the interest income 
appears doubtful. Interest receivable that has been accrued and is subsequently determined to have doubtful 
collectability is charged to interest income. Interest on loans that are classified as non-accrual is recognized when 
received. Past due loans are loans whose principal or interest is past due 90 days or more. In some cases, where 
borrowers are experiencing financial difficulties, loans may be restructured to provide terms significantly 
different from the original contractual terms. 
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The following table presents an analysis of past due loans as of December 31, 2013 and 2012: 

As of December 31, 2013 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Current 

$ 192,964,082 

8,368,927 

7,484,283 

6,332,805 

2,176,201 

21,301,570 

30-89 Days 

Still Accruing 

$ 9,075,691 

-
-
-
-

661,662 

Greater Than 

90 Days Still 

Accruing 

$ 
-
-
-
-
-

Total 

Accruing 

Past Due 

$ 9,075,691 

-
-
-
-

661,662 

Non-accrual 

$ 7,757,554 

-
361,432 

-
842 

139,425 

Total 

Financing 

Receivables 

$ 209,797,327 

8,368,927 

7,845,715 

6,332,805 

2,177,043 

22,102,657 

$ 238,627,868 9,737,353 9,737,353 8,259,253 $ 256,624,474 

As of December 31, 2012 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

I m p a i r e d Loans 

Current 

$ 184,198,909 

7,833,447 

8,415,214 

4,538,840 

2,579,635 

19,395,722 

$ 226,961,767 

30-89 Days 

Still Accruing 

$ 9,967,150 

571,261 

1,383,519 

-
10,275 

360,205 

$ 12,292,410 

Greater Than 

90 Days Still 

Accruing 

$ 
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 

Accruing 

Past Due 

$ 9,967,150 

571,261 

1,383,519 

-
10,275 

360,205 

$ 12,292,410 

Non-accrual 

$ 

L 

6,289,910 

-
374,734 

485,229 

21,416 

177,551 

7,348,840 

Total 

Financing 

Receivables 

$ 200,455,969 

8,404,708 

10,173,467 

5,024,069 

2,611,326 

19,933,478 

$ 246,603,017 

Loans are considered impaired when, based on current information and events; it is probable the Company will 
be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original contractual terms of the loan agreements. 
Impaired loans include loans on nonaccrual status and troubled debt restructurings. If a loan is deemed 
impaired, a specific valuation allowance is allocated, if necessary, so that the loan is reported net, at the present 
value of estimated future cash flows using the loan's existing rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is 
expected solely from the collateral. Interest payments on impaired loans are typically applied to principal unless 
collectability of the principal amount is reasonably assured, in which case interest is recognized on a cash basis. 
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The following is a summary on information pertaining to average balances and interest relating to impaired 
loans for the two year period ended December 31, 2013: 

As of December 31, 2013 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Total 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Total 

Average Investment 

in 

$ 

L 

Impaired Loans 

33,981,718 

149,261 

3,825,662 

1,001,928 
-

84,776 

39,043,345 

Interest Income 

Recognized on 

Impaired Loans 

$ 887,424 

2,421 

77,407 

19,266 

-
-

$ 986,518 

Interest Income 

Recognized on Cash 

Basis on Impaired 

Loans 

$ 884,542 

6,285 

77,407 

19,266 
-
-

$ 987,500 

As of December 31, 2012 

Average Investment 

in 

$ 

L 

Impaired Loans 

31,225,833 

149,261 

2,027,972 

874,406 
-

192,828 

34,470,300 

Interest Income 

Recognized on 

Impaired Loans 

$ 1,025,251 

3,864 

198,823 

5,249 
-
-

$ 1,233,187 

Interest Income 

Recognized on Cash 

Basis on Impaired 

Loans 

$ 1,031,560 

-

207,120 

5,250 
-
-

$ 1,243,930 
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The following table presents an analysis of loans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loans as of 
December 31,2013 and 2012: 

As of December 31,2013 

Cormnerdal 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Total 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Total 

Unpaid Total 

Principal 

Balance 

$ 33,907,841 

-

4,325,354 

744,024 
-

169,552 

$ 39,146,771 

Unpaid Total 

Principal 

Balance 

$ 35,899,074 

298,521 

3,788,967 

1,259,832 
-

-

$ 41,246,394 

Recorded 

Investment 

With No 

Allowance 

$ 17,816,295 

-

2,880,285 

744,024 
-

107,160 

$ 21,547,764 

Recorded 

Investment 

With 

Allowance 

$ 15,209,857 

-

1,090,526 

-
-

62,392 

$ 16,362,775 

As of December 31, 

Recorded 

Investment 

With No 

Allowance 

$ 20,357,338 

298,521 

374,732 

774,603 
-

-

$ 21,805,194 

Recorded 

Investment 

With 

Allowance 

$ 14,579,946 

-

3,305,780 

485,229 
-

-

$ 18,370,955 

Total 

Recorded 

Investment 

$ 33,026,152 

-

3,970,811 

744,024 
-

169,552 

$ 37,910,539 

2012 

Total 

Recorded 

Investment 

$ 34,937,284 

298,521 

3,680,512 

1,259,832 
-

-

$ 40,176,149 

Related 

Allowance 

$ 

L 

1,668,664 

-

151,637 

-
-

35,092 

1,855,393 

Related 

Allowance 

$ 

L 

1,376,962 

-

235,201 

123,649 
-

-

1,735,812 

Troubled Debt Restructurings (TDRs) 

Loans are considered to have been modified in a TDR when due to a borrower's financial difficulty; the 
Company makes certain concessions to the borrower that it would not otherwise consider for new debt with 
similar risk characteristics. Modifications may include interest rate reductions, principal or interest forgiveness, 
forbearance, and other actions intended to minimize economic loss and to avoid foreclosure or repossession of 
the collateral. Each potential loan modification is reviewed individually and the terms of the loan are modified 
to meet the borrower's specific circumstances at a point in time. Not all loan modifications are TDRs. Generally, 
a non-accrual loan that has been modified in a TDR remains on non-accrual status for a period of 6 months to 
demonstrate that the borrower is able to meet the terms of the modified loan. However, performance prior to 
the modification, or significant events that coincide with the modification, are included in assessing whether the 
borrower can meet the new terms and may result in the loan being returned to accrual status at the time of loan 
modification or after a shorter performance period. If the borrower's ability to meet the revised payment 
schedule is uncertain, the loan remains on non-accrual status. Once a loan is modified in a troubled debt 
restructuring it is accounted for as an impaired loan, regardless of its accrual status, until the loan is paid in full, 
sold or charged off. 
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Loan modifications are reviewed and approved by the Company's senior lending staff, who then determines 
whether the loan meets the criteria for a TDR. Generally, the types of concessions granted to borrowers that are 
evaluated in determining whether the loan is classified as a TDR include: 

• Interest rate reductions - Occur when the stated interest rate is reduced to a nonmarket rate or a rate the 
borrower would not be able to obtain elsewhere under similar circumstances. 

• Amortization or maturity date changes - Result when the amortization period of the loan is extended 
beyond what is considered a normal amortization period for loans of similar type with similar 
collateral. 

• Principal reductions - These are often the result of commercial real estate loan workouts where two new 
notes are created. The primary note is underwritten based upon our normal underwriting standards 
and is structured so that the projected cash flows are sufficient to repay the contractual principal and 
interest of the newly restructured note. The terms of the secondary note vary by situation and often 
involve that note being charged-off, or the principal and interest payments being deferred until after 
the primary note has been repaid. In situations where a portion of the note is charged-off during 
modification there is often not specific reserve allocated to those loans. This is due to the fact that the 
amount of the charge-off usually represents the excess of the original loan balance over the collateral 
value and the Company has determined there is no additional exposure on those loans. 

The following table presents the amount of troubled debt restructuring by loan class, classified separately as 
accrual and non-accrual at December 31,2013 and 2012. 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Total TDR's 

Commercial 

Construction 

Acquisition and development 

Land 

Consumer 

Residential real estate 

Total TDR's 

$ 

L 

$ 

L 

Accruing 

21,551,064 

3,677,766 

743,974 

43,158 

26,015,962 

Accruing 

27,080,145 

3,305,780 

774,603 

43,897 

31,204,425 

December 31,2013 

Non-Accrual 

$ 4,164,000 

361,432 

_ 

$ 4,525,432 

December 31,2012 

Non-Accrual 

$ 1,860,162 

369,132 

-

$ 2,229,294 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Total 

25,715,064 

4,039,198 

743,974 

43,158 

30,541,394 

Total 

28,940,307 

3,674,912 

774,603 

43,897 

33,433,719 
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The following table presents the amount of troubled debt restructurings by loan class, classified separately as 
those currently paying under restructured terms and those that have defaulted under restructured terms as of 
December 31, 2013 and 2012. Loans modified in a troubled debt restructuring are considered to be in default 
once the loan becomes 30 days past due. 

Commercial 
Construction 
Acquisition and development 
Land 
Consumer 
Residential real estate 

Total 

Commercial 

Construction 
Acquisition and development 
Land 
Consumer 
Residential real estate 

Total 

December; 

Loans Currently Paying 

Under Restructured Terms 

# 

19 

1 

1 

1 

22 

$ 

L 

Balance 

16,980,191 

3,677,766 

743,974 

43,158 

21,445,089 

51,2013 

Loans that have Defaulted 

Under Restructured Terms 

# 

December 31,2012 

Loans Currently Paying 

Under Restiuctured Terms 
# Balance 

20 

1 

1 

1 

23 

$ 

r 

23,136,077 

3,305,780 

774,603 

43,897 

27,260,357 

10 $ 

1 

_ 

11 $_ 

Balance 

8,734,873 

361,432 

_ 

9,096,305 

Loans that have Defaulted 

Under Restructured Terms 
# Balance 

10 $ 

1 

_ 

il i_ 

5,804,230 

369,132 

_ 

6,173,362 

The following table presents the amount of troubled debt restructurings by types of concessions made, classified 
separately as accrual and non-accrual at December 31, 2013 and 2012. 

Type of Concession: 

Forbearance of interest 

Forgiveness of principal 

Payment modification only 

A&B note structure 

Rate reduction, forbearance of 

Rate reduction, forbearance of 

interest 

principal 

Rate reduction, payment modification 

Total 

Accruing 

# 

-

1 

1 

2 
-

1 
21 

26 

$ 

$ 

December 31,2013 
;Loans 

Balance 

-

43,158 

58,236 

1,214,671 
-

2,950,854 
21,749,043 

26,015,962 

Non-Accruing Loans 

# 

-

-

-

3 

1 
-
4 

_8 

$ 

$_ 

Balance 

-

-

-

205,346 

2,346,986 
-

1,973,100 

4,525,432 
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Type of Concession: 

Forbearance of interest 

Forgiveness of principal 

Payment modification only 

A&B note structure 

Rate reduction, forbearance of interest 

Rate reduction, forbearance of principal 

Rate reduction, payment modification 

Total 

Accruing 
# 

- $ 
1 
2 
2 
1 
1 

18 
25 $ 

Decemb 
Loans 
Balance 

-
43,897 

390,969 
2,360,415 
2,920,759 
3,305,780 

22,182,605 
31,204,425 

er 31,2012 
Non-Accruing Loans 
# 

-
-
2 
4 
-
-
3 

_9 

$ 

$_ 

Balance 

-
-

74,684 
308,759 

-
-

1,845,851 
2,229,294 

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had a balance of $30,541,394 and $33,433,719, respectively, in 
troubled debt restructurings. The Company has recorded $692,203 and $1,109,860 in previous charge-offs on 
such loans as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company's balance in the allowance for loan 
losses allocated to such troubled debt restruchirings was $1,183,913 and $712,232 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. The Company had no unfunded commitments to lend to a customer that has a troubled debt 
restructured loan as of December 31,2013. 

Allowance for loan losses 

The allowance for loan losses represents a reserve for inherent losses in the loan portfolio. The adequacy of the 
allowance for loan losses is evaluated periodically based on a review of all significant loans; with a particular 
emphasis on non-accruing, past due and other loans that management believes might be potentially impaired or 
warrant additional attention. The Company segregates the loan portfolio by type of loan and utilizes this 
segregation in evaluating exposure to risks within the portfolio. In addition, based on internal reviews and 
external reviews performed by independent auditors and regulatory authorities, the Company further 
segregates the loan portfolio by loan grades based on an assessment of risk for a particular loan or group of 
loans. Certain reviewed loans are assigned specific allowances when a review of relevant data determines that a 
general allocation is not sufficient or when the review affords management the opportunity to fine tune the 
amount of exposure in a given credit. In establishing allowances, management considers historical loan loss 
experience but adjusts this data with a significant emphasis on data such as current loan quality trends, current 
economic conditions and other factors in the markets where the Company operates. Factors considered include, 
among others, current and expected economic conditions in the operating area, delinquency trends, adversely 
rated loans and nonaccrual loans within a specific segment. 

The Company has developed a methodology for determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses 
which is monitored by the Company's Senior Management. Procedures provide for the assignment of a risk 
rating for every loan included in the total loan portfolio, with the exception of credit card receivables and 
overdraft protection loans which are treated as pools for risk rating purposes. The risk rating schedule provides 
seven ratings of which four ratings are classified as pass ratings and three ratings are classified as criticized 
ratings. Each risk rating is assigned a percentage factor to be applied to the loan balance to determine the 
adequate amount of reserve. Many of the larger loans require an annual review by an independent loan officer 
or an independent third party loan review firm. As a result of these loan reviews, certain loans may be assigned 
specific reserve allocations. Other loans that surface as problem loans may also be assigned specific reserves. The 
calculation of the allowance for loan losses, including underlying data and assumptions, is reviewed regularly 
by the Company's Loan Committee, senior management and Board of Directors. 
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Activity in the allowance for loan losses for the two year period ended December 31, 2013 is as follows: 

2013 2012 

Beginning Balance 

Add - Provision for possible loan losses 

Subtotal 

Less: 
Loans charged off 

Recoveries on loans previously charged off 

Net loans charged off 

Balance, end of year 

4,316,493 5,379,141 

900,000 375,000 

5,216,493 5,754,141 

1,565,616 1,667,388 

(498,431) (229,740) 

1,067,185 1,437,648 

$ 4,149,308 $ 4,316,493 

The following table details activity in the allowance for loan losses by portfolio segment for the year ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012. Allocation of a portion of the allowance to one category of loans does not preclude 
its availability to absorb losses in other categories. 

As of December 31, 2013 

Commercial 

Ulowance for credit losses: 

Seginning Balance $ 
Chargeoffs 
Recoveries 
Provision 

inding Balance $ 

*eriod-end amount allocated to: 

Loans individually evaluated 
for impairment $ 
Loans collectively evaluated 
for impairment 

Ending balance $ 

2,896,032 

(1,140,970) 
46,724 

1,448,627 

3,250,413 

1,668,664 

1,581,749 

3,250,413 

Construction 

$ 

L= 

$ 

$ 

68,860 

35,176 

104,036 

104,036 

104,036 

Acquisition & 

Development 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

$ 

689,606 

(424,3511 

265,255 

151,637 

113,618 

265,255 

$ 

*_. 

$ 

$ 

Land 

298,297 

(108) 
344,784 

(572,814) 

70,159 

70,159 

70,159 

Consumer 

$ 

*_ 

$ 

$ 

61,942 
(40,147) 

97,161 
(84,655) 

34,301 

34,301 

34,301 

Residential 

Real Estate 

$ 

*_ 

$ 

$ 

315,509 

(384,391) 
9,762 

484,264 

425,144 

35,092 

390,052 

425,144 

Unallocated 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(13,753) 

13,753 

-

-

-

$ 

L 

$ 

$ 

Total 

4,316,493 
(1,565,616) 

498,431 
900,000 

4,149,308 

1,855,393 

2,293,915 

4,149,308 

Loans: 

Individually evaluated for 
impairment 

Collectively evaluated for 
impairment 

Ending balance 

$ 33,026,152 $ - $ 3,970,811 $ 744,024 $ - $ 169,552 $ 

176,771,175 8,368,927 3,874,904 5,588,781 2,177,043 21,933,105 _ 

$ 209,797,327 $ 8,368,927 $ 7,845,715 $ 6,332,805 $ 2,177,043 $ 22,102,657 $ 

$ 37,910,539 

218,713,935 

$ 256,624,474 

27 



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

Commercial 

Allowance for credit losses: 

Beginning Balance $ 3,460,692 
Chargeoffs (1,392,391) 
Recoveries 168,925 
Provision 658.806 

Ending Balance $ 2,896,032 

Period-end amount allocated to: 

Loans individually evaluated 
for impairment $ 1,376,962 

Loans collectively evaluated 
for impairment 1,519,070 

Ending balance $ 2,896,032 

Loans: 

Individually evaluated for 
impairment $ 34,937,284 

Collectively evaluated for 
impairment 165,518,685 

Ending balance $ 200,455,969 

, BANK PREMISES AND EOU 

Construction 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

$ 

[JI 

136,568 
(9,492) 
4,705 

(62.921) 

68,860 

68,860 

68,860 

298,521 

8,106,187 

8,404,708 

'MENT 

Acquisition & 

Development 

$ 

i_ 

$ 

$ 

613,834 

75,772 

689,606 

235,201 

454,405 

689,606 

3,680,512 

6,492,955 

10,173,467 

As of December 31, 2012 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

Land 

476,562 

47,784 
(226,049) 

298,297 

123,649 

174,648 

298,297 

1,259,832 

3,764,237 

5,024,069 

Consumer 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

L 

61,550 
(13,086) 

4,664 
8,814 

61,942 

61,942 

61,942 

$ 

2,611,326 

$ 2,611,326 

Residential 

Real Estate 

$ 541,436 
(252,419) 

3,662 
22,830 

$ 315,509 

$ 

315,509 

$ 315,509 

$ 

19,933,478 

$ 19,933,478 

Unallocated 

$ 

$_ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

88,499 

(102,252) 

(13,753) 

(13,753) 

(13,753) 

-

-

$ 

$_ 

$ 

5_ 

$ 

L 

Total 

5,379,141 
(1,667,388) 

229,740 
375,000 

4,316,493 

1,735,812 

2,580,681 

4,316,493 

40,176,149 

206,426,868 

246,603,017 

The following is a summary of asset classifications and depreciable lives for the Bank at December 31, 2013 and 
2012: 

Useful Lives (Years) 2013 2012 

Land 

Buildings and improvements 

Furniture and equipment 

Leasehold improvements 

Construction in process 

Property held for disposal 

Total 

Less - accumulated depreciation 

Bank premises and equipment, net 

5-40 

2-20 

7-25 

$ 

$ 

1,074,885 $ 

6,055,752 

6,458,260 

320,503 

45,347 

1,333,142 

15,287,889 

(7,842,380) 

7,445,509 $ 

1,074,885 

5,866,105 

5,950,645 

480,237 

364,814 

1,333,142 

15,069,828 

(7,388,780) 

7,681,048 

Property held for disposal consists of the building and land formerly held by the Bank as the Towne Center 
branch in Fayette County. This property is currently held for sale and is being actively marketed. 

Depreciation included in operating expenses amounted to $547,396 and $486,329 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

28 



CCF HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 

E. DEPOSITS 

At December 31, 2013, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows: 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 and thereafter 

Total time deposits 

86,627,265 

24,258,973 

4,410,088 

611,503 

8,392,035 

124,299,864 

F. INCOME TAXES 

The components of income tax expense are as follows: 

Years Ended December 31, 

Current tax expense (benefit) 

Deferred tax expense (benefit) 

Total provision for (benefit of) income taxes 

Change in valuation allowance 

Net provision for (benefit of) income taxes 

$ 

$ 

2013 

- $ 

(216,540) 

(216,540) 

216,540 

- $ 

2012 

-

1,345,525 

1,345,525 

(1,345,525) 

-

The differences between income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income 
tax rate to earnings before taxes for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

Years Ended December 31, 

Tax on pretax income at statutory rate 

State income taxes, net of federeal tax benefit 

Tax-exempt interest income 

Life insurance income 

Effect of over accrual and deferred tax attributed 

Other 

Total 

Net effective tax rate 

$ 

$ 

2013 

(53,760) 

(11,394) 

(108,400) 

-
173,554 

-

$ 

$ 

2012 

662,646 

(12,851) 

(108,972) 

(984,773) 

443,950 

-

0.00% 0.00% 
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The effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities at December 31, 2013 and 2012 are presented below: 

Deferred Income Tax Assets; 

Provision for loan losses 

Deferred compensation 

Other real estate 

Net operating losses 

State tax credits 

Deferred loan fees 

Other 

Total deferred tax assets 

Less: valuation allowance 

Net deferred tax assets 

Years Ended December 31, 

2013 

$ 120,504 $ 

335,336 

4,276,660 

3,919,871 

387,300 

68,315 

492,529 

2012 

295,520 

306,855 

4,636,136 

3,425,013 

287,391 

65,630 

257,435 

9,600,515 

(9,720,247) 

9,273,980 

(9,503,707) 

(119,732) (229,727) 

Deferred Income Tax Liabilities: 

Depreciation 

Other 

Total deferred tax liabilities 

Net deferred tax asset (liability) 

102,711 

17,021 

119,732 

204,195 

25,532 

229,727 

G. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCE AND LINES OF CREDIT 

The Bank had an available credit from the FHLB in the amount of $30,150,000. There was $6,000,000 advanced 
against this line as of December 31, 2013. The advance outstanding had an interest rate of 0.355%> and a stated 
maturity date of January 23, 2014. Available loan collateral at December 31, 2013 totaled $25,936,667. The Bank 
continues to work to identify loans that can be added to the pool of loans used for pledging at the FHLB. 
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H. JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES 

On January 29, 2002, the Company issued through a Delaware statutory trust subsidiary, CCF Capital Trust I, 
(the "Trust"), $4,000,000 of trust preferred securities with a maturity of March 31, 2032. The Company owns all 
of the common securities of Trust 1. The proceeds from the issuance of the common securities and the trust 
preferred securities were used by Trust I to purchase $4,125,000 of junior subordinated debentures of the 
Company, which carry a floating interest rate adjusted every three months to the Wall Street Journal prime plus 
75 basis points. At December 31, 2013, the Wall Street Journal prime rate was 3.25%. Of the proceeds received by 
the Company from the sale of the junior subordinated debentures to Trust I, $125,000 was used for the common 
securities of Trust 1 and $4,000,000 was used for general corporate purposes, primarily to strengthen the capital 
position of the Bank. The debentures and related accrued interest represent the sole assets of Trust I. 

On March 30, 2004, the Company issued through a Delaware statutory trust subsidiary, CCF Capital Trust II 
("Trust II"), $4,500,000 of trust preferred securities with a maturity of March 31, 2034. The Company owns all of 
the common securities of Trust II. The proceeds from the issuance of the trust preferred securities were used by 
Trust II to purchase $4,640,000 of junior subordinated debentures of the Company, which carry a floating rate of 
interest adjusted every three months to the Wall Street Journal prime plus 12.5 basis points. Of the proceeds 
received by the Company from the sale of the junior subordinated debentures to Trust II, $140,000 was used for 
the common securities of Trust II and $4,500,000 was used for general corporate purposes, primarily to 
strengthen the capital position of the Bank. The debentures and related accrued interest represent the sole assets 
of Trust II. 

Pursuant to the terms of the junior subordinate debentures held by Trust I and Trust II, the Company has the 
option to defer distributions on such securities at any time, and from time to time, for a period not to exceed 
twenty consecutive quarters. During the second quarter of 2009, the Company elected to defer interest payments 
on its trust preferred securities. Furthermore, pursuant to the Written Agreement entered into with the Federal 
Reserve Bank of Atlanta, the Company is prohibited from paying interest on its trust preferred securities absent 
prior written approval from the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta. Based on the terms outlined above, the final 
period of deferral of interest payments is first quarter of 2014. As a result, unless approval for payment of all 
accrued and current interest due as of second quarter 2014 is obtained from regulatory agencies, the Company 
will be in default of its outstanding obligations. 

The Company has entered into contractual arrangement which, taken collectively, fully and unconditionally 
guarantee payment of accrued and unpaid distributions required to be paid on the trust preferred securities, the 
redemption price with respect to any trust preferred securities called for redemption by Trust 1 and Trust II, and 
payments due upon a voluntary or involuntary dissolution, winding up or liquidation of Trust I or Trust II. 

In accordance with ASC 810, Trust I and Trust II (the "Trusts") are not consolidated with the Company. 
Accordingly, the Company does not report the securities issued by the Trusts as liabilities and instead reports as 
liabilities the junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company and held by the Trusts, as these are no 
longer eliminated in consolidation. The trust preferred securities are recorded as junior subordinated debentures 
on the balance sheets, but subject to certain limitations for Tier 1 regulatory capital purposes. 

I. PREFERRED STOCK 

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 there were 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock authorized and no shares 
outstanding. The Board of Directors of the Company is authorized to issue preferred stock and to fix and state 
voting powers, designations, preferences or other special rights of such shares and the qualifications, limitations 
and restrictions thereof, subject to regulatory approval but without stockholder approval. 
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J. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

401 (k) Profit Sharing Plan 

The Company has a tax-qualified defined contribution profit sharing plan (the "Plan") for the benefit of its 
employees. Effective October 31, 2013, the Company rolled its Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) into the 
401k plan. All full-time employees and part-time employees who work 1,000 hours or more become eligible to 
participate under the Plan after completing one year of service. Under the Plan, employees may voluntarily elect 
to defer up to 15% of their compensation, not to exceed applicable limits. Under normal circumstances the 
Company matches $0.25 for each $1.00 with the matching contributions vesting after the first year at a rate of 
20% per year with full vesting after five years. Additionally, the Company may contribute an annual 
discretionary contribution to the Plan based upon a number of factors, such as the Company's retained earnings, 
profits, regulatory capital, and employee performance. The Company's matching contribution totaled $31,582 
and $11,626 in 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Stock Option Plan 

The Company sponsored a stock option plan (the "1995 Option Plan") whereby 486,067 authorized shares of 
common stock were reserved for issuance by the Company upon exercise of stock options granted to officers, 
directors and employees of the Company from time to time. Options constituted both incentive stock options 
and non-qualified stock options. Options awarded to officers and directors are exercisable at a rate of 20% 
annually with the first 20% exercisable on the one-year anniversary of the date of grant. Any shares subject to an 
award, which expire or are terminated unexercised, will be retired. The 1995 Option Plan had a term of ten 
years. The exercise price per share for non-qualified and incentive stock options shall be the price as determined 
by an option committee, but not less than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. 

In 2000, the Company and shareholders approved a second stock option plan (the "2000 Option Plan") whereby 
270,000 shares of common stock (either authorized shares or shares purchased in the market) were available to 
be granted to officers, directors, and employees of the Company from time to time. Options constitute both 
incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options. Terms of the 2000 Option Plan are similar to that of the 
1995 Option Plan with the exception that all options granted under this plan vest immediately following the date 
of the grant, but require a six month holding period. 

In 2007, the Company and shareholders approved a third stock option plan (the "2007 Option Plan") whereby 
400,000 shares of common stock (either authorized shares or shares purchased in the market) were available to 
be granted to officers, directors, and employees of the Company from time to time. Options constitute both 
incentive stock options and non-qualified stock options. Terms of the 2007 Option Plan are similar to that of the 
2000 Option Plan. 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012 there were no shares of common stock available for grant under the 1995 or 2000 
Option Plans. At December 31, 2013 and 2012 there were 257,334 shares available and 279,834 shares available, 
respectively, under the 2007 Option Plan. 
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Stock option activity is as follows: 

2013 

Weighted Weighted 

Average Average Aggregate 

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic 

Shares Price Term Value 

Oustanding at beginning of 

Granted 

Exercised 

Forfeited and expired 

Outstanding at end of year 

Options exercisable at year-

year 

end 

273,211 

22,500 

-

(23,625) 

272,086 

272,086 

$ 7.69 

1.00 

-

10.19 

6.92 

6.92 

5.54 $ 

5.54 $ 

-

-

Weighted-average fair value of 

options granted during year 0.97 

2012 

Oustanding at beginning of year 

Granted 

Exercised 

Forfeited and expired 

Outstanding at end of year 

Options exercisable at year-end 

Weighted Weighted 

Average Average Aggregate 

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic 

Shares Price Term Value 

184,780 $ 

115,721 

(27,290) 

273,211 $ 

273,211 $ 

12.59 

0.12 

8.77 

7.69 

7.69 

5.70 $ 

5.70 $ 

-

-

Weighted-average fair value of 

options granted during year $ 0.11 

All options are fully vested and exercisable as of December 31, 2013 and 2012. 

Life Insurance Policies 

The Company adopted a nonqualified supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP) to provide retirement 
benefits to certain of the Company's executive officers and to provide death benefits for the designated 
beneficiaries. Under this plan, single-premium, split-dollar, whole-life insurance contracts were purchased on 
certain executive officers. For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company incurred expenses of 
$84,000 and $74,000, respectively, in connection with this plan. 
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In 2012, the plan agreements relating to the SERP were amended to provide for the distribution of a portion of 
the retirement benefit in the form of Company stock as opposed to cash based upon a share price of $0.72 per 
share as of the amendment date. The result of the amendment was the conversion of $1.7 million of the existing 
accrued deferred compensation obligation payable from cash to stock. The portion of the obligation payable as 
stock is treated as an equity award as opposed to a liability award under ASC 480-10-25; accordingly, no liability 
is recorded under ASC 718-20-55 implementation guidance and no expense beyond the conversion value (i.e., 
the grant date value of the promised stock) is recognized in accordance with equity accounting rules of ASC 718-
10-35. The reduction in the previously accrued deferred compensation liability was recorded in 2012 as a credit 
to retained earnings. 

K. LIMITATION ON DIVIDENDS 

The Board of Directors of any state-chartered bank in Georgia may declare and pay cash dividends on its 
outstanding capital stock without any request for approval of the Bank's regulatory agency if the following 
conditions are met: 

1) Total classified assets at the most recent examination of the bank do not exceed eighty (80) percent of 
equity capital. 

2) The aggregate amount of dividends declared in the calendar year does not exceed fifty (50) percent of 
the prior year's net income plus an additional fifty (50) percent of calculated income taxes "as if" the 
corporation was still a taxable corporation. 

3) The ratio of equity capital to adjusted total assets shall not be less than six (6) percent. 

As of January 1, 2014, dividends could not be paid without further impairment of capital. In addition, the Bank 
was placed under a formal agreement dated January 8, 2010 that requires regulatory approval prior to the 
payment of dividends during the period of the agreement. 

L. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to 
meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit 
and standby letters of credit. Those instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk and interest 
rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The contract or notional 
amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in those particular financial 
instruments. 

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company guaranteeing the performance of 
a customer to a third party. These guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing 
arrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in 
extending loan facilities to customers. The Company holds collateral supporting these commitments, as deemed 
necessary. 

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial 
instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual 
notional amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and 
conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. 

The Subsidiary does require collateral or other security to support finandal instruments with credit risk. 
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Financial instruments whose contract amount represent credit risk; 
Commitments to extend credit 
Standby letters of credit 

Total 

Contract or Notional Amount 

i 52,082,788 
465,929 

; 52,548,717 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination 
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being 
drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The 
Company evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained 
if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit is based on management's credit evaluation. 

The Company has entered into contracts with certain members of management which stipulate a term and 
annual base salary. The contracts include provisions to terminate the agreements for "just cause" which is 
defined in the contracts. If such members of management are relieved of their position without just cause, the 
employee is entitled to a continuation of salary from the termination date through the remaining term of the 
agreement. Certain of these employment agreements contain a provision stating that in the event of any change 
in control of the Company which results in voluntary or involuntary termination of employment within one 
year, the officer will be paid a lump sum distribution equal to 2.99 times the individual's base compensation. 

The Company maintains an overall interest rate risk management strategy that incorporates the use of derivative 
instruments to minimize significant unplanned fluctuations in earnings that are caused by interest rate volatility. 
The goal is to manage interest rate sensitivity by modifying the repricing or maturity characteristics of certain 
assets and liabilities so that the net interest margin is not, on a material basis, adversely affected by certain 
movements in interest rates. The Company views this strategy as a prudent management of interest rate 
sensitivity, such that earnings are not exposed to undue risk presented by changes in interest rates. 

Derivative instruments are used as part of the Company's interest rate risk-management strategy. By using 
derivative instruments, the Company is exposed to credit and market risk. If the counterparty fails to perform, 
credit risk is equal to the extent of the fair-value gain in a derivative. When the fair value of a derivative contract 
is positive, this generally indicates that the counterparty owes the Company, and therefore, creates a repayment 
risk for the Company. When the fair value of a derivative contract is negative, the Company owes the 
counterparty and therefore, it has no repayment risk. The Company minimizes the credit (or repayment) risk in 
derivative instruments by entering into transactions with high-quality counterparties that are reviewed 
periodically. 

The Company's derivative activities are monitored by its asset-liability management committee as part of that 
committee's oversight of the Company's asset-liability and treasury functions. The Company's asset-liability 
committee is responsible for implementing various hedging strategies that are developed through its analysis of 
data from financial simulation models and other internal and industry sources. The resulting hedging strategies 
are then incorporated into the overall interest rate risk management. 

M. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company, through its subsidiary bank, has direct and indirect loans 
outstanding to or for the benefit of certain executive officers and directors. These loans were made on 
substantially the same terms as those prevailing, at the time made, for comparable loans to other persons and 
did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features. 
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The following is a summary of activity during 2013 with respect to such loans to these individuals: 

Balances at December 31,2012 $ 3,568,022 

New loans 452,283 

Repayments (285,208) 

Balances at December 31,2013 $ 3,735,097 

The Bank subsidiary also had deposits from these related parties of approximately $2,021,346 at December 31, 
2013. 

The Bank paid legal fees during 2013 and 2012 to Edwin S. Kemp, Jr., Attorney at Law, which is a legal firm with 
a Bank Director serving as an active partner. Payments totaling $18,000 and $18,000 for legal services were 
recognized during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

N. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amount that would be exchanged between willing parties, 
other than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices. However, in 
many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the company's various financial instruments. In cases 
where quoted market prices are not available, fair value is based on discounted cash flows or other valuation 
techniques. These techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and 
estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate 
settlement of the instrument. The accounting standard for disclosures about the fair value of financial 
instruments excludes certain financial instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure 
requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented may not necessarily represent the 
underlying fair value of the Company. 

The fair value hierarchy describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value: 

Level 1 - Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active markets. 

Level 2 - Valuation is based upon observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for 
similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable 
or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. 

Level 3 - Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and 
that are significant to the fair value of assets or liabilities. 

Following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities which are either recorded or 
disclosed at fair value. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For disclosure purposes for cash, due from banks and federal funds sold, the carrying amount is a reasonable 
estimate of fair value. 

Investment Securities Available for Sale 
The fair value of securities available for sale is determined by various valuation methodologies. Where quoted 
market prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. 
If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices 
of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows. Level 2 securities include mortgage-backed 
securities issued by government sponsored enterprises and municipal bonds. The level 2 fair value pricing is 
provided by an independent third-party and is based upon similar securities in an active market. In certain 
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cases where Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available, securities are classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy 
and include certain residual municipal securities and other less liquid securities. 

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 
The fair value of Federal Home Loan Bank stock approximates carrying value, as there is no ready market for 
such investments. 

Other Investments 
For disclosure purposes the carrying value of other investments approximates fair value. 

Loans Held for Sale 
For loans held for sale, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair value given the short-term nature of the 
loans and similarity to what secondary markets are currently offering for portfolios of loans with similar 
characteristics. Therefore, the Company records the loans held for sale as nonrecurring Level 2. 

Loans 
The carrying amount of variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk 
approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed-rate loans is estimated based on discounted contractual cash 
flows, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers with similar credit 
quality. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated based on discounted expected future cash flows or 
underlying collateral values, where applicable. A loan is determined to be impaired if the Company believes it 
is probable that all principal and interest amounts due according to the terms of the loan will not be collected as 
scheduled. The fair value of impaired loans is determined in accordance with accounting standards and 
generally results in a specific reserve established through a charge to the provision for loan losses. Losses on 
impaired loans are charged to the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan is 
confirmed. When the fair value of collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, 
the Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or 
management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value, and there 
is no observable market price, the Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 3. 

Cash Surrender Value of Bank Owned Life Insurance 
For disclosure purposes, for cash surrender value of life insurance, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of 
fair value. 

Other Real Estate and Foreclosed Assets 
Other real estate properties are adjusted to fair value upon transfer of the loans to other real 
estate. Subsequently, other real estate assets are carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value. Fair value is 
based upon independent market prices, appraised values of the collateral or management's estimation of the 
value of the collateral. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or a current 
appraised value, the Bank records the other real estate as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not 
available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised 
value and there is no observable market price, the Bank records the other real estate asset as nonrecurring Level 
3. 

Intangible Assets and Goodwill 
Intangible assets consist of core deposit premiums acquired in connection with business combinations and are 
based on the established value of acquired customer deposits. The core deposit premium is initially recognized 
based on a valuation performed as of the consummation date and is amortized over an estimated useful life of 
three to ten years. Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net identifiable 
assets acquired in a business combination. Goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to have an indefinite 
useful life are not amortized but instead are subject to an annual review for impairment. 
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Deposits 
For disclosure purposes, the fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, NOW accounts and money market 
deposits is the amount payable on demand at the reporting date, while the fair value of fixed maturity certificates 
of deposit is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using current rates at which comparable certificates 
would be issued. 

Securities Sold under Agreements to Repurchase and Other Borrowings 
The carrying amount of variable rate borrowings and securities sold under repurchase agreements approximates 
fair value. The fair value of fixed rate other borrowings is estimated based on discounted contractual cash flows 
using the current incremental borrowing rates for similar borrowing arrangements. 

Tunior Subordinated Debentures 
For disclosure purposes, for junior subordinated debentures, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair 
value. 

Short-term borrowings 
For disclosure purposes, for short-term borrowings at a fixed rate, the fair value of the borrowing is estimated 
using discounted cash flows, based on the current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing 
arrangements. For short-term borrowings at a variable rate, the carrying value is a reasonable estimate of fair 
value. 

Commitments to Extend Credit and Standby Letters of Credit 
Because commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are made using variable rates and have short 
maturities, the carrying value and the fair value are immaterial for disclosure. 

Assets a n d Liabi l i t ies Recorded at Fair V a l u e on a Recur r ing Basis 

The table below presents the recorded amount of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those 
measurements fall. 

As of December 31, 2013 

ASSETS: 

Investment securities available for sale: 

U.S. Agencies 

U.S. Government obligations 

State and Political subdivisions 

Other debt securities 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total investment securities available for sale 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

7,852,898 $ 

14,203,300 

795,459 

988,125 

21,156,830 

$ 44,996,612 

Total 

$ 7,852,898 

14,203,300 

795,459 

988,125 

21,156,830 

$ 44,996,612 
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As of December 31, 2012 

ASSETS: 

Investment securities available for sale: 

U.S. Agencies 

U.S. Government obligations 

State and Political subdivisions 

Other debt securities 

Mortgage backed securities 

Total investment securities available for sale 

Level 1 

$ 

-

-
-

$ 

Level 2 

$ 2,004,073 

842,923 

1,904,375 

21,075,263 

$ 25,826,634 

$ 

$_ 

Level 3 

-

-

-
-

-

Total 

$ 2,004,073 

842,923 

1,904,375 

21,075,263 

$ 25,826,634 

Assets a n d Liabi l i t ies Recorded at Fair V a l u e o n a N o n r e c u r r i n g Basis 

The Company may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis 
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These include assets that are measured at the 
lower of cost or market that were recognized at fair value below cost at the end of the period. The table below 
presents the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 
2013 and 2012, aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements fall. 

As of December 31, 2013 

ASSETS: 

Impaired loans 

Foreclosed assets 

Total assets 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

$ 36,055,146 

23,070,880 

Total 

< 36,055,146 

23,070,880 

- $ 59,126,026 $ 59,126,026 

As of December 31, 2013 

ASSETS: 

Impaired loans 

Foreclosed assets 

Total assets 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

$ 38,440,337 $ 38,440,337 

27,539,700 27,539,700 

$ 65,980,037 $ 65,980,037 

The following table shows significant unobservable inputs used in the fair va lue measu remen t of 
level 3 assets and liabilities: 

Measurements: 

Fair Value at 

December 31, 2013 Valuation Technique Unobservable Inputs Range 

Nonrecurring: 

Impaired loans 
Third party appraisals. Collateral discounts, 

36,055,146 discounted cash flows, and estimated selling expenses, 
loan pricing and discoimt rates 

4.00% -
20.00% 

Foreclosed assets 27,539,700 Third party appraisals 
Collateral discounts and 4.00% -
estimated selling costs 75.00% 
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The carrying a m o u n t and est imated fair va lue of the C o m p a n y ' s financial ins t ruments , not s h o w n 
elsewhere in these financial s ta tements , w e r e as follows: 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

CDs in other banks 

Investment sectxrities held to maturity 

Loans, net 

2013 2012 

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value 

$ 10,731,683 $ 10,731,683 $ 28,668,532 $ 28,668,532 

9,221,000 9,221,000 3,234,000 3,234,000 

12,088,929 11,528,161 13,558,119 13,620,394 

256,624,474 256,918,587 246,603,017 246,566,883 

Liabilities: 

Deposits 

FHLB borrowings 

330,998,177 

6,000,000 

331,335,545 

6,000,000 

325,788,068 325,857,271 

O. CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION 

The Company's subsidiary grants consumer, commercial and residential loans to its customers. Although the 
Subsidiary has a diversified loan portfolio, a substantial portion of its debtors' ability to honor their contracts is 
dependent on the area's economic stability. The primary trade area for the Subsidiary is generally that area 
within 50 miles in each direction of the Bank. As of the Bank's most recent regulatory examination a 
concentration in construction real estate loans was identified. 

The distribution of commitments to extend credit approximates the distribution of loans outstanding. 
Commercial and standby letters of credit were granted primarily to commercial borrowers. The Bank, as a 
matter of policy, does not extend credit in excess of the legal lending limit to any single borrower or group of 
related borrowers. 

CCF Holding Company and its subsidiary maintain cash balances at various financial institutions. On July 21, 
2010, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act was signed into law and permanently 
raised the FDIC coverage limit to $250,000. As of December 31, 2013 the Company had funds at other financial 
institutions in excess of FDIC insurance limits totaling $10,827 

The Company maintains a cash balance in an account held with the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB). The 
FHLB is not a financial institution and as a result funds held are not subject to FDIC insurance coverage. As of 
December 31, 2013 the Company had an outstanding balance of $326,601 which is not covered by FDIC 
insurance. 

The Company also maintains a cash balance in an interest bearing account held with the Federal Reserve Bank. 
The Federal Reserve Bank is not considered a financial institution and as a result funds held are not subject to 
FDIC insurance coverage. As of December 31, 2013 the Company had an outstanding balance of $4,021,373. 
While this balance is not covered by FDIC insurance limits, outstanding balances held with the Federal Reserve 
Bank are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States. 
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P. OPERATING INCOME & EXPENSES 

Components of other operating income and other operating expenses greater than 1 % of total interest income 
and other income for the years ended December 31,2013 and 2012 were: 

OTHER OPERATING INCOME: 

2013 2012 

Debit card fee collections $ 394,438 $ 332,223 

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES: 

2013 2012 

Data processing $ 680,589 $ 646,133 

Debit card expense 279,097 222,142 

Taxes and licenses 162,553 131,149 

Q. REGULATORY MATTERS 

Effective January 8, 2010, the Bank became subject to a Consent order, a formal written enforcement action with 
the FDIC and the DBF. The Order requires the Bank to address key areas of improvement, many of which had 
already been addressed and were being proactively managed, and specifies timeframes to improve the financial 
performance of the Bank. Other material provisions of the Order require the Bank to: increase the Board's 
participation in the Bank's affairs, including establishing a monitoring program to ensure compliance with the 
Order; ensure that the Bank has and retains qualified management; achieve and maintain Tier 1 Capital at or 
above 8% of total assets and total risk-based capital at or above 10% of total risk-weighted assets; charge-off all 
assets classified as "Loss" and 50% of all assets classified as "Doubtful" in any official Report of Examination 
from the FDIC or the DBF; formulate a plan to reduce risk exposure for each asset or relationship in excess of 
$500,000 that is classified "Substandard" or "Doubtful"; reduce the aggregate balance of assets classified as 
"Substandard" or "Doubtful" in accordance with a schedule provided in the Order; perform a risk segmentation 
analysis on the Bank's cited concentrations of credit; review the adequacy of the Bank's allowance for loan and 
lease losses and establish a comprehensive policy to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan and lease 
losses; review and, if necessary, revise the Bank's written plan and comprehensive budget for all categories of 
income and expense; restrict material asset growth or initiating material changes in asset or liability composition 
without prior notification to the FDIC and the DBF; and file quarterly progress reports with the FDIC and the 
DBF. In addition, the Bank may not declare or pay dividends or bonuses without prior written approval from 
the FDIC and the DBF. The Bank also may not accept, renew or rollover brokered deposits without a waiver 
from the FDIC. 

On October 12, 2010, the Company entered into a written agreement with the Federal Reserve Bank of Atlanta 
and the DBF (the "Agreement"), pursuant to which the Company is prohibited from declaring and paying 
dividends without prior written consent from the regulators. In addition, pursuant to the Agreement, without 
the prior written consent from its regulators, the Company is prohibited from taking dividends, or any other 
form of payment representing a reduction of capital, from the Bank; paying interest, principal or other sums on 
subordinated debentures or trust preferred securities; increasing or guaranteeing any debt; and redeeming any 
shares of the Company's common stock. In appointing any new director or any executive officer, the Company 
is required to notify regulatory authorities and comply with restrictions on indemnification and severance. The 
Company is also required to submit progress reports within 30 days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal 
banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly 
additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the 
Company's or Bank's financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for 
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prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of 
the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting 
practices. The Bank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the 
regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank 
to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total risk-based and Tier I capital (as 
defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets 
(as defined). As of December 31, 2013, the most recent notification from the FDIC categorized the Company's 
capital position as "adequately capitalized." 

To be categorized as well capitalized, under the general regulatory framework, the Bank must maintain 
minimum total risk-based and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table in additions to the conditions in its 
regulatory agreement. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have 
changed the institution's category. 

The Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the following table: 

Actual 

For Capital 

Adequacy Purposes 

To Be Well Capitalized 

Under Prompt Corrective 

Action Provisions 

As of December 31, 2013 

Total Risk-Based Capital To 

(Risk-Weighted Assets) 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

$ 21,726,000 8.24% $ 21,086,399 > 8.0% $ 26,357,999 > 10,0% 

Tier I Capital To 

(Risk-Weighted Assets) 18,421,000 6.99% 10,543,200 > 4.0% 15,814,800 > 6.0% 

Tier I Capital To 

(Average Assets) 18,421,000 4.92% 14,983,880 > 4.0% 18,729,850 > 5.0% 

As of December 31, 2012 

Total Risk-Based Capital To 

(Risk-Weighted Assets) 21,471,000 8.27% $ 20,765,362 > 8.0% $ 25,956,702 > 10.0% 

Tier I Capital To 

(Risk-Weighted Assets) 18,213,000 7.02% 10,382,681 > 4.0% 15,574,021 > 6.0% 

Tier I Capital To 

(Average Assets) 18,213,000 5.13% 14,207,722 > 4.0% 17,759,653 > 5.0% 
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R. SEGMENT REPORTING 

Reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. Reportable segments 
are managed separately because each segment appeals to different markets and, accordingly, require different 
technology and marketing strategies. 

The Company and its subsidiary do not have any separately reportable operating segments. The entire 
operations of the Company are managed as one operation. 

S. SUBSEOUENT EVENTS 

The Company performed an evaluation of subsequent events through March 27, 2014, the date upon which the 
Company's financial statements were available for issue. The Company has not evaluated subsequent events 
after this date. No subsequent events were identified that would have required a change to the financial 
statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements. 

T. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PARENT COMPANY ONLY) 

Condensed parent company financial information on CCF Holding Company, as of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follows: 

BALANCE SHEETS 

As of December 31, 

2013 2012 

Assets 

Cash in subsidiary and due from banks $ 90,411 $ 354,975 

Investment in subsidiary, at equity in underlying net assets 17,131,893 18,262,415 

Accrued income and other assets 803,982 601,282 

Total Assets $ 18,026,286 $ 19,218,672 

Liabilities 

Junior subordinated debentures $ 8,765,000 $ 8,765,000 

Other liabilities 1,546,272 1,220,890 

Total Liabilities 10,311,272 9,985,890 

Shareholders' Equity 

Preferred stock, no par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; no 

shares issued or outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 

Common stock, $.10 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized as 

of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively; 3,604,316 shares 

issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 360,432 360,432 

Paid-in capital surplus 9,109,773 9,075,553 

Accumulated deficit (465,758) (251,666) 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (1,289,433) 48,463 

Total shareholders' equity 7,715,014 9,232,782 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders'Equity $ 18,026,286 $ 19,218,672 
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS 

Years Ended December 31, 

Revenues 

Interest income 

Expenses 

Interest expense 

Other 

Total expenses 

Loss Before Taxes and Equity Income of Subsidiary 

Provision for (benefit of) income taxes 

Loss Before Equity Income of Subsidiary 

Equity in undistiibuted income of subsidiary 

Net Income (Loss) 

Accumulated Deficit, Beginning 

Reduction in SERP liability due to plan amendment 

Accumulated Deficit, Ending 

2013 

$ 209 $ 

325,382 

96,293 

421,675 

2012 

348 

324,974 

45,531 

370,505 

(421,466) (370,157) 

(421,466) 

207,374 

(214,092) 

(251,666) 

(370,157) 

2,324,066 

1,953,909 

(3,942,025) 

1,736,450 

$ (465,758) $ (251,666) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in 

operating activities: 

Compensation expense from issuance of stock options 

Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary 

Net change in operating assets and liabilities: 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Years Ended December 31, 

2013 2012 

(214,092) $ 1,953,909 

34,220 

(207,374) 

122,682 

(264,564) 

(264,564) 

354,975 

$ 90,411 $ 

(2,324,066) 

347,517 

(22,640) 

(22,640) 

377,615 

354,975 

Noncash Transactions: 

Change in other comprehensive income 

Reduction in SERP liability due to plan amendment 

(1,337,896) $ (476,571) 

- $ 1,736,450 
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